
Town of Amherst, NH 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN AGENDA 

Barbara Landry Meeting Room 
2 Main Street 

 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2023 4:00 PM 
 

 

 

 
    
1. Call to Order 
    
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
    
3. Citizens' Forum 
    
4. Board Appointment, Conservation Committee 
  4.1. Volunteer Application for Conservation Commission- Mark Bender  
    
5. Scheduled Appointments 
 

 

    
6. Administration 
  6.1. Administrative updates  
    
7. Staff Reports 
  7.1. Part-Time Dispatcher Hire  
  7.2. DPW Ford F550 Bid  
  7.3. Fire/Rescue - reduction of Comstar Invoice  
  7.4. Finance Department Staffing  
    
8. Approvals 
  8.1. Request for use of Town Green: Amherst Junior Womens Club's Annual 

Easter Egg Hunt 2023  
  8.2. Hawker and Peddler permit application, Leo Short, Sammich LLC  
  8.3. Assessing  
  8.4. Payroll, AP and Meeting Minutes  
    
9. Action Items 
    

Page 1 of 38



 

 

10. Old/New Business 
    
11. Non-Public Session 
  11.1. RSA 91-A:3, II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect 

adversely the reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body 
itself, unless such person requests an open meeting. This exemption shall extend 
to any application for assistance or tax abatement or waiver of a fee, fine, or other 
levy, if based on inability to pay or poverty of the applicant.   

  11.2. RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee.  
    
  Adjournment 
    
  Next Meeting: February 21, 2023 
 

You are invited to a Zoom webinar. 
When: Feb 6, 2023 04:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Topic: Board of Selectmen Meeting 2/6/2023 
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81745414885  
Or Telephone: 301 715 8592   
Webinar ID: 817 4541 4885 
 
 

Page 2 of 38

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81745414885


Town of Amherst, NH 

Volunteer Application 

Board/Committee/Commission you wish to serve on: lot1�1Z-V/rnc-✓ --------------

Applicant Name: 

Mailing Address: ------� 

-------- ----------- Telephone: 

(Cell) (Home) 

Time Available - Hours per month (Circle One): 2 5 @) 20 30

Other Boards/Committee/Commission Served On (may include other cities/towns): 
-��N il!Dn<-t ..... LS'll1,+-n:>A_ ,,..:, M.Jt,.F.:>1\.1, ,I� 

Please submit a brief statement describing your interest i1t the position you are applying for 

and what qualities/experience you will bring to the board to help with its goals and mission. 

Date 
1 

Please return this form and requested statements to: 

Jennifer Stover 
Town of Amherst 
2 Main Street 
Amherst, NH 03031 

or e-mail: jstover@amherstnh.gov 

Page 3 of 38



Page 4 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Administrative updates Department: Administration 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact:   
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
General.  
 
Discuss payment of waterline hook ups not covered by state grants. 
  
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)     
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:  
  
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 

Page 5 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Part-Time Dispatcher Hire Department: Police Department 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact: Mark Reams  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
On behalf of Amherst Public Safety Communications Center (APSCC), I am requesting 
that the Board of Selectmen approve the appointment of Mr. Cameron Stacey to the 
position of Part-Time Dispatcher.  Mr. Stacey comes to the APSCC with prior full-time 
dispatching experience, and has undergone the agency’s extensive pre-employment 
background investigation.  Mr. Stacey’s appointment will augment shift coverage as 
needed within the Communications Center. 
  
Thank you for your consideration.  -Chief Reams 
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)    
Position will be funded through existing approved APSCC budget line, Public Safety - 
Part Time Wages 01-4299-10-1115. 
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Move to approve the hiring of Cameron M. Stacey to the position of Part-Time 
Dispatcher, Grade 6 Step 4 $23.04, effective February 6, 2023. 
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 20230120083913 
 

Page 6 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: DPW Ford F550 Bid Department: Public Works 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact: Eric Slosek  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
As per our vehicle replacement plan, we desire to replace Truck 5, a 2011 Ford F550, 
with a new model 2023 F550.  In addition to posting an advertisement to bid on our 
electronic sites, we directly invited six area Ford dealerships to bid.  Of the six 
dealerships, only Colonial Municipal Group (CMG) sent us a bid.  We reached out to 
the other dealerships we invited to ask why they did not submit bids. Some answers 
given were they didn't have time to mail it, couldn't procure the accessory equipment, 
and the order window closed. A few have not responded to our information request. 
Shortly after advertising our bid, we learned that the Ford order window had closed on 
Friday, January 13.  This is a truck we will need for the 2023-2024 plowing 
season.  The next order window to place an order with Ford does not open up until 
sometime in June 2023, with orders not likely to be fulfilled until sometime in Spring 
2024. 
 
The bid CMG submitted did not include a liquid calcium spray system, or trade in value. 
We asked CMG to give us an updated proposal including these items.  The amended 
proposal including liquid system and trade in is $2,197 less, for a total net price of 
$93,508.20. 
 
We recommend the BOS approve the amended bid from CMG, for the total purchase 
price of $93,508.20. CMG utilizes Massachusetts state bid pricing. The State of NH does 
not have a state bid price for Ford F550 trucks.  If approved, this purchase would be the 
third truck we have purchased from CMG since 2020. We have had a good experience 
with CMG. They are responsive and had the lowest pricing for our last two purchases. 
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)    
$93,508.20 from DPW Vehicles and Equipment Acquisition and Replacement CRF 
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend to award bid to Colonial Municipal Group (CMG). 
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Page 7 of 38



I move to approve the purchase of a 2023 model Ford F550, with all associated 
implements and accessories, and the trade-in of our existing 2011 model Ford F550 
with plow and sander, from Colonial Municipal Group, for the net purchase price of 
$93,508.20. I further move to authorize the Town Administrator to sign any related 
documents. 
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CMG Bid 07-23 
2. Award for 07-23 
3. Equipment Plan 
 

Page 8 of 38



Page 9 of 38



Page 10 of 38



Page 11 of 38



Page 12 of 38



Page 13 of 38



TOWN OF AMHERST 
          

Town Department:   DPW Date:  January 31, 2023 

Line Item:  F550 Budget Amount:  

Bid #: 07-23 Item: DPW Vehicle CRF Date Bid To Be Awarded:  February 6, 2023 

 
          Vendor                                         Price                      Trade                                      Total 
                                                                                                                                     

 
Recommend bid be awarded to:  Colonial Municipal Group 

                                                                                                                                         Signature of Town Administrator / Date 
 
Please attach to this request a copy of the specifications and proposal from the lowest qualified bidder. 
This bid has been posted on New Hampshire Municipal Association; and the Amherst NH website. 
 
   

 
1.   AutoFair Ford                                                     NO BID 
 
2.   Best Ford                                                            NO BID                                                  
 
3.   Colonial Municipal Group                               $100,508.20                 -$7,000.00                      $93,508.20  
 
4.   Ford of Londonderry                                           NO BID 

 
 
5.   Grappone Automotive Group                              NO BID  
 
6    MHQ Truck & Equipment                                    NO BID                                                                       
 

Page 14 of 38



Page 15 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Fire/Rescue - reduction of Comstar 
Invoice 

Department: Finance Department 

Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact: Debbie Bender  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
This is to get approval for a reduction to Comstar Invoice #20-256216. 
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)     
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:  
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to reduce Comstar Invoice #20-256216 by $719.75 based on the request from 
Chief Conley and Finance Director Bender. 
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Payment reduction request (1) 
 

Page 16 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Finance Department Staffing Department: Finance Department 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact: Debbie Bender  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
We have been looking for an Assistant Finance Director since September 2022 and 
have not found a qualified applicant. In the meantime, we would really benefit from 
having another person at least part time to help the department get caught up. I am 
proposing that we focus our attention on hiring a Finance Department Assistant. This is 
an existing position in the department. It was what I was hired into, back in 2013. This 
person would help with data entry, general clerical duties and providing backup to the 
Accountant and the Finance Director, along with providing support for special projects 
such as organizing fixed assets. I have said from the beginning that a staff of 2 full-time 
and one part-time would be the minimum number of people to efficiently run the finance 
department and also allow for continuity of services with some disruptions. If we went 
with 3 full-time employees, that would also allow for some flexibility to help out with 
Administration or some other department as needed.  
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)    
Lower budget amount for clerk instead of assistant finance director. 
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION: 
Yes 
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I motion that we allow the Finance Director to hire a Finance Department Assistant, 
Grade 6. 
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. FY23 Town Wage Scale 
2. Finance Assistant 1.25.2018 
 

Page 17 of 38



FY23 

PAY 

SCALE

4 Percent COLA 

Adjustment

GRADE POSITIONS

Fiscal Year FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23

1 Library Page 11.39  11.85  11.61  12.07  11.83  12.30  12.08  12.56  12.31  12.80  12.57  13.07  12.82  13.33  13.07  13.59  13.34  13.87  13.60  14.14  13.88  14.44  

2
PT REC Maintenance, PT 

Labor
14.39  14.97  14.68  15.27  14.97  15.57  15.28  15.89  15.58  16.20  15.89  16.53  16.20  16.85  16.52  17.18  16.87  17.54  17.20  17.89  17.55  18.25  

3

Library Assist, Tech 

Services Librarian, 

Dispatch Trainee, PT 

Police Officer, Transfer 

Station Attendant, 

Crossing Guard, Assist 

Clerk 

17.72  18.43  18.09  18.81  18.45  19.19  18.80  19.55  19.18  19.95  19.57  20.35  19.97  20.77  20.36  21.17  20.77  21.60  21.18  22.03  21.61  22.47  

4

Laborer/Truck Driver, 

Grounds Keeper, Libr 

Assist II

18.38  19.12  18.76  19.51  19.12  19.88  19.52  20.30  19.90  20.70  20.30  21.11  20.71  21.54  21.12  21.96  21.55  22.41  21.97  22.85  22.40  23.30  

5

PT Secretary, 

Administrative Fire 

Lieutenant

19.87  20.66  20.27  21.08  20.68  21.51  21.09  21.93  21.53  22.39  21.95  22.83  22.39  23.29  22.83  23.74  23.28  24.21  23.75  24.70  24.24  25.21  

6

Department Assistant, 

Assessing Technician, 

Dispatcher, Secretary

20.88  21.72  21.27  22.12  21.71  22.58  22.15  23.04  22.59  23.49  23.05  23.97  23.52  24.46  23.96  24.92  24.46  25.44  24.94  25.94  25.44  26.46  

7
Light Equipmt Operator, 

Assist Dispatch Coord
21.26  22.11  21.70  22.57  22.14  23.03  22.58  23.48  23.04  23.96  23.50  24.44  23.95  24.91  24.42  25.40  24.93  25.93  25.43  26.45  25.93  26.97  

8
Police Assistant, 

Dispatch Coordinator
21.92  22.80  22.36  23.25  22.81  23.72  23.26  24.19  23.73  24.68  24.21  25.18  24.68  25.67  25.19  26.20  25.70  26.73  26.22  27.27  26.75  27.82  

9 Light Equip/Mechanic 22.13  23.02  22.58  23.48  23.02  23.94  23.48  24.42  23.94  24.90  24.42  25.40  24.92  25.92  25.42  26.44  25.92  26.96  26.44  27.50  26.97  28.05  

10
Heavy Equipment 

Operator
22.33  23.22  22.79  23.70  23.23  24.16  23.71  24.66  24.19  25.16  24.66  25.65  25.17  26.18  25.67  26.70  26.18  27.23  26.69  27.76  27.23  28.32  

11

Senior Heavy Equipment 

Operator, Rec. Program 

Coordinator

22.78  23.69  23.23  24.16  23.70  24.65  24.17  25.14  24.65  25.64  25.16  26.17  25.67  26.70  26.17  27.22  26.68  27.75  27.22  28.31  27.76  28.87  

12

Executive Assistant, PT 

Building Inspector, 

Accountant, Deputy 

Town Clerk, Town 

Planner, 

24.16  25.13  24.64  25.63  25.15  26.16  25.64  26.67  26.15  27.20  26.67  27.74  27.21  28.30  27.75  28.86  28.29  29.42  28.89  30.05  29.46  30.64  

13

Fire Inspector, Comm. 

Center Supervisor, FT 

Bldg. Inspector

25.36  26.37  25.87  26.90  26.40  27.46  26.92  28.00  27.46  28.56  28.01  29.13  28.56  29.70  29.13  30.30  29.72  30.91  30.31  31.52  30.93  32.17  

14

Town Clerk, Tax 

Collector, Library Dept. 

Head, Foreman

26.60  27.66  27.16  28.25  27.71  28.82  28.27  29.40  28.84  29.99  29.42  30.60  29.99  31.19  30.59  31.81  31.20  32.45  31.84  33.11  32.46  33.76  

15 Zoning Administrator 29.36  30.53  29.96  31.16  30.56  31.78  31.16  32.41  31.77  33.04  32.42  33.72  33.07  34.39  33.74  35.09  34.40  35.78  35.09  36.49  35.80  37.23  

16 Clerk of Works (Roads) 30.84  32.07  31.47  32.73  32.08  33.36  32.72  34.03  33.37  34.70  34.04  35.40  34.72  36.11  35.43  36.85  36.12  37.56  36.84  38.31  37.60  39.10  

17
Police Lieutenant, 

Captain Fire Rescue
34.00  35.36  34.68  36.07  35.38  36.80  36.07  37.51  36.80  38.27  37.56  39.06  38.30  39.83  39.06  40.62  39.85  41.44  40.64  42.27  41.45  43.11  

18

Deputy Chief, Assistant 

DPW Director, Police 

Captain

36.60  38.06  37.32  38.81  38.08  39.60  38.84  40.39  39.63  41.22  40.41  42.03  41.22  42.87  42.04  43.72  42.88  44.60  43.75  45.50  44.60  46.38  

19

DPW Director, Police 

Chief, Fire Chief, Library 

Director, Community 

Development Director, 

Finance Director, 

Recreation Director

39.35  40.92  40.14  41.75  40.95  42.59  41.75  43.42  42.59  44.29  43.43  45.17  44.31  46.08  45.21  47.02  46.09  47.93  47.02  48.90  47.97  49.89  

20 Town Administrator 43.85  45.60  44.72  46.51  45.61  47.43  46.53  48.39  47.47  49.37  48.42  50.36  49.38  51.36  50.35  52.36  51.37  53.42  52.39  54.49  53.44  55.58  

Step 11

Effective 7/1/22 to 6/30/23

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10

Page 18 of 38



Finance Assistant 
Page 1 of 3 

Amherst, NH 

January 2018 

 

Job Description 

 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT ASSISTANT 

 

DEPARTMENT:   FINANCE 

 

SUPERVISOR:   FINANCE DIRECTOR 

   

SALARY CLASSIFICATION: FULL TIME 

 

JOB SUMMARY 

This full-time position is responsible for processing and maintaining all payroll, accounts 

payable, cash receipts and accounts receivable.  Performs additional routine accounting 

and clerical duties.  This job description is meant to be illustrative and is no way all-

inclusive.  It shall be used as a tool or guide in the job performance of the employee it 

applies to. 

 

ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS 

 

1. Processes, reviews, corrects, verifies, and maintains general financial information 

for accounts payable, accounts receivable, and all payroll functions to include 

monthly and yearly reporting to state and federal government agencies. 

 

2. Monitors fund balances for the general, conservation, and recreation funds and 

special town projects. 

 

3. Examines purchase orders, daily cash sheets, paid bills, and receipts for accuracy 

and consistency. 

 

4. Prepares checks for warrants, posts payments, statements, and lists to various hard 

copy and computer-based ledgers, registers and/or journals.  

  

5. Performs various financial applications, does word processing, develops 

spreadsheets and/or database files. 

 

6. Prepares routine financial and budget reports and statements.   

 

7. Answers questions and provides instructions requiring a working knowledge of 

municipal laws, rules, and regulations, bookkeeping and office procedures. 

 

8. Answers telephone, and responds to personal inquires, service requests, 

Page 19 of 38



Finance Assistant 
Page 2 of 3 

complaints and correspondence from customers in a helpful, courteous, and 

efficient manner. 

 

9. Prepares financial reports as directed to aid in decision-making, public disclosure,    

or compliance with legal requirements. 

 

10. Assists with other office job functions in the event a coworker is absent or during  

peak customer times. 

 

11. Performs related work as required by the Finance Director and Town   

Administrator. 

 

 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILL AND ABILITY REQUIREMENTS 

 

 Knowledge of the principles, methods, and practices of bookkeeping.   

 

 Working knowledge of laws, ordinances, and regulations governing municipal 

finance. 

 

 Strong planning, organizational, performance and evaluation skills over financial 

operations. 

 

 Knowledge of modern office methods and procedures including the use of 

computer based financial applications.   

 

 Knowledge of cash handling and cash reconciliation procedures. 

 

 Ability to maintain effective relationships with other employees, municipal 

officials, and  customers.  

 

 Ability to prepare complex financial reports and handle multiple tasks. 

 

 Ability to perform mathematical calculations with speed and accuracy using a 

calculator and/or computer. 

 

 Ability to keep and maintain financial records of significant complexity. 

 

 Skill in the operation of data processing equipment, typewriters, adding machines, 

copiers, and office equipment. 

 

 Ability to communicate effectively orally, in writing and by listening in the 

activities of conversation, discussion, notes, memorandum, and reports. 

 

Page 20 of 38



Finance Assistant 
Page 3 of 3 

EDUCATION/LICENSURE/CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

High School Diploma or GED is required with supplemental training in bookkeeping.  

College level courses or an Associates Degree in accounting or other related financial 

discipline preferred.  Two or more years of experience in bookkeeping or related financial 

work desired.  Knowledge of Business Management Systems software, Microsoft Access, 

Word, and Excel required.  

 

WORK LOCATION AND HOURS 

 

The Town Office is located at 2 Main Street, and the hours of operation are from 8:00 

AM to 4:00 PM. 

 

PHYSICAL EXERTION / ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

Some physical effort involving lifting and filing boxes in the archives during research.  

Working conditions include data entry.  Job often entails routine and repetitive tasks that, 

once learned, can be executed under general supervision. Senior department personnel to 

insure accuracy and completeness of assignments may check work. 

 

 

Page 21 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Request for use of Town Green: 
Amherst Junior Womens Club's Annual 
Easter Egg Hunt 2023 

Department: Administration 

Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact:   
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)     
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:  
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to approve the request for use of the Town Green for the Amherst Junior 
Women Club's Annual Easter Egg Hunt April 1, 2023 from 8:30am-noon.  
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amherst Junior Women's Club Easter Egg Hunt 2023 Permit request - signed 
 

Page 22 of 38



Mark O. Reams (Jan 22, 2023 11:31 EST)
Mark O. Reams 1/21/23

Matthew Conley (Jan 24, 2023 14:46 EST)
Matthew Conley 1/24/2023

Eric Slosek (Jan 27, 2023 14:59 EST)
Eric Slosek 1-27-2023

Page 23 of 38



Amherst Junior Women's Club, Easter Egg Hunt
2023 Permit request
Final Audit Report 2023-01-27

Created: 2023-01-20

By: Jennifer Stover (jstover@amherstnh.gov)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAsJVJz8RfUCQiDY4ttiIkX9aLPdQrMJEP

"Amherst Junior Women's Club, Easter Egg Hunt 2023 Permit re
quest" History

Document created by Jennifer Stover (jstover@amherstnh.gov)
2023-01-20 - 6:31:26 PM GMT

Document emailed to mreams@amherstnh.gov for signature
2023-01-20 - 6:32:07 PM GMT

Email viewed by mreams@amherstnh.gov
2023-01-22 - 4:30:42 PM GMT

Signer mreams@amherstnh.gov entered name at signing as Mark O. Reams
2023-01-22 - 4:31:11 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Mark O. Reams (mreams@amherstnh.gov)
Signature Date: 2023-01-22 - 4:31:13 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document emailed to Matthew Conley (mconley@amherstnh.gov) for signature
2023-01-22 - 4:31:14 PM GMT

Email viewed by Matthew Conley (mconley@amherstnh.gov)
2023-01-24 - 7:45:55 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Matthew Conley (mconley@amherstnh.gov)
Signature Date: 2023-01-24 - 7:46:27 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document emailed to Eric Slosek (eslosek@amherstnh.gov) for signature
2023-01-24 - 7:46:28 PM GMT

Email viewed by Eric Slosek (eslosek@amherstnh.gov)
2023-01-27 - 7:58:38 PM GMT

Page 24 of 38



Document e-signed by Eric Slosek (eslosek@amherstnh.gov)
Signature Date: 2023-01-27 - 7:59:42 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2023-01-27 - 7:59:42 PM GMT

Page 25 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Hawker and Peddler permit 
application, Leo Short, Sammich LLC 

Department: Administration 

Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact:   
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)     
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:  
  
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Leo Short, Sammich LLC Hawkers and Peddlers application Jan 2023 
 

Page 26 of 38



Page 27 of 38



Page 28 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Assessing Department: Assessing 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact: Michele Boudreau  
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)     
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:  
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Land Use Change Tax 
Item A. This property no longer qualifies for current use under RSA 79-a. It no longer 
meets the 10-acre minimum to qualify.  The property sold on March 15, 2022, which is 
the date it no longer qualified.  The LUCT was determined by taking the ad-valorem 
assessment and dividing it by the preliminary 2022 equalization ratio of 80.1% 
($231,000/.801=$288,400 rounded). This is very close to the purchase price of 
$290,000. 
 
Suggested Motion:   
This is a Land Use ChangeTax Release for Map 005, Lot 059-032.  This lot no longer 
qualifies for current use under RSA 79-a due to a sale and insufficient acreage.  Our 
Assessor has determined the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $28,840.00 
represents 10% of the full and true market value of $288,400.  Therefore, I move to 
approve the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $28,840.00 for Map 005, Lot 059-
032. 
 
All Service Veterans' Tax Credit 
Item B. I have reviewed the attached All Service Veterans’ Tax Credit Application 
provided and the applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28-b for the 2023 
tax year. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Our Assessor has reviewed the application for the All Service Veterans’ Tax Credit 
under RSA 72:28-b and recommends approval. Therefore, I move to approve the All-
Service Veterans’ Tax Credit for Map 025, Lot 064-000 commencing in tax year 2023. 
 

Page 29 of 38



Item C. I have reviewed the attached All Service Veterans’ Tax Credit Application 
provided and the applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28-b for the 2024 
tax year. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Our Assessor has reviewed the application for the All Service Veterans’ Tax Credit 
under RSA 72:28-b and recommends approval. Therefore, I move to approve the All-
Service Veterans’ Tax Credit for Map 017, Lot 116-000 commencing in tax year 2024. 
 
Bliind Exemption 
Item D. The applicant has applied for a Blind Exemption and meets the qualification for 
RSA 72:37. 
 
Suggested Motion:  The Assessor has reviewed the application for Blind Exemption 
under RSA 72:37 and recommends approval.  Therefore, I move to approve the Blind 
Exemption for Map 005, Lot 016-014 commencing in Tax Year 2023. 
 
Service-Connected Disabled Veteran Tax Credit 
Item E. I have reviewed the attached Service-Connected Total Disabled Veteran Tax 
Credit Application provided and the applicant does qualify for the Tax Credit under RSA 
72:35 for the 2024 tax year. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Our Assessor has reviewed the application for the Service-Connected Total Disabled 
Tax Credit under RSA 72:35 and recommends approval.  Therefore, I move to approve 
the Service-Connected Total Disabled Tax Credit for Map 010, Lot 057-000 
commencing in tax year 2024. 
 
Veteran Tax Credit 
 Item F. I have reviewed the attached Veteran Tax Credit Application provided and the 
applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28 for the 2024 tax year. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
The attached application has been reviewed by our Assessor and our Assessor 
recommends granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Veteran Tax Credit 
for Map 010, Lot 057-000 commencing in Tax Year 2024. 
 
Item G. I have reviewed the attached Veteran Tax Credit Application provided and the 
applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28 for the 2024 tax year. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
The attached application has been reviewed by our Assessor and our Assessor 
recommends granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Veteran Tax Credit 
for Map 010, Lot 057-000 commencing in Tax Year 2024. 
 
 

Page 30 of 38



 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Item A Confidential 
2. Item B Confidential 
3. Item C Confidential 
4. Item D Confidential 
5. Item E Confidential 
6. Item F Confidential 
7. Item G Confidential 
8. Item H Confidential 
 

Page 31 of 38



Town of Amherst, NH 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Title: Payroll, AP and Meeting Minutes Department: Administration 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2023 Staff Contact:   
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
  
BUDGET IMPACT: 
(Include general ledger account numbers)     
  
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  
  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:  
  
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
Payroll 
       PR1~ I move to approve one (1) FY23 Payroll Manifest in the amount of 
$244,497.90 dated January 26, 2023, subject to review and audit.  
  
Accounts Payable 
   
    AP1 ~I move to approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$335,123.63 dated January 31, 2023, subject to review and audit. (Vendors) 
  
    Minutes 
     ~ I move to approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of January 17, 2023. 
     ~ I move to approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of January 23, 2023. 
  
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2023.01.17 BOS_DRAFT_NonPub_dp 
2. 2023.01.23 BOS_DRAFT_dp 
 

Page 32 of 38



 
 
 
 
 

Town of Amherst, NH 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 

Barbara Landry Meeting Room 

2 Main Street 

Tuesday, January 17, 2022, 4:00PM 
 

Attendees/Member Present: Chairman Peter Lyon, Selectman Bill Stoughton, Selectman John 1 

D’Angelo, Selectman Grella, and Selectman Danielle Pray 2 

 3 

Also present: Town Administrator Dean Shankle, ACC Chair Rob Clemens,  Jared Hardner, 4 

ACC member, Jamin Warren, Open Space Advisory Committee (OSAC) 5 

 6 

1. Call to Order 7 

 8 

Chairman Peter Lyon called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. A motion to enter Nonpublic 9 

Session was made by Selectman D’Angelo and seconded by Selectman Grella.  10 

Roll call vote: Chairman Lyon – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye: 11 

Selectman Stoughton – aye: Selectman Grella – aye. Motion carried unanimously.  12 

Entered nonpublic session at 4:01 p.m. 13 

 14 

Specific statutory reasons cited as foundation for the nonpublic session: 15 

 16 

Non-Public pursuant to RSA 91-A:3, II, (d) Consideration of the acquisition, sale, or lease of 17 

real or personal property which, if discussed in public, would likely benefit a party or parties 18 

whose interests are adverse to those of the general community, (l) Consideration of legal 19 

advice provided by legal counsel, either in writing or orally, to one or more members of the 20 

public body, even where legal counsel is not present. 21 

 22 

2. Non-Public Session 23 

 24 

RSA 91-A:3 II(d) 25 

A discussion was held by the BOS and ACC members and OSAC regarding opportunities for 26 

open space land acquisition in Amherst. No decisions were made, and no votes were taken. 27 

 28 

RSA 91-A:3 II(l) 29 

(ACC and ASOC members exited the meeting room). 30 

A discussion was held regarding legal advice provided to the Board. No votes were taken. 31 

 32 

A motion to leave nonpublic session and return to public session was made by Chairman Lyon 33 

and seconded by Selectman D’Angelo. Motion passed 5-0-0. 34 

 35 

Public session reconvened at 5:35 p.m. 36 

 37 
3. Old/New Business 38 

Page 33 of 38



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2023.01.17 

 PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

No old or new business. 39 

 40 

A motion to adjourn was made by Selectman Grella and seconded by Selectman 41 

D’Angelo. Motion passed 5-0-0. 42 

 43 

Meeting adjourned at 5:35 p.m. 44 

 45 

NEXT MEETING: Monday, January 23, 2023 46 

 47 

 48 

 49 

_____________________________                       _______________________ 50 

Selectman Danielle Pray                                           Date 51 

 52 

 53 

These Meeting Minutes recorded by Selectman Danielle Pray, Clerk. 54 

Page 34 of 38



 
 
 
 
 

Town of Amherst, NH 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 

Barbara Landry Meeting Room 

2 Main Street 

Monday, January 23, 2023, 6:30PM 
 

Attendees: Chairman Peter Lyon, Selectman Bill Stoughton (via phone), Selectman John 1 

D’Angelo, Selectman Grella, and Selectman Danielle Pray 2 

 3 

Also present: Town Administrator Dean Shankle 4 

 5 

1. Call to Order 6 

Chairman Peter Lyon called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. He noted that, due to an internet 7 

outage, a Zoom meeting is not available for this meeting. Also, Selectman Stoughton joined 8 

the meeting via phone. 9 

 10 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – led by Peter Lyon. 11 

 12 

3.  Citizen’s Forum  13 

None at this time. 14 

 15 

      4. Scheduled Appointments  16 

None at this time. 17 

 18 

       5.   Administration 19 

Town Administrator Shankle stated that Sanborn Head will send in its report to the State this 20 

week. Town Hall was closed today due to a winter storm and associated power outages. He 21 

noted that the State has explained that the State will only pay for houses to be hooked up to 22 

Town water that have overages in PFAS levels. This will account for nine of the fifteen 23 

properties effected. If the EPA changes its regulations, the State will go back and potentially 24 

retroactively pay for these properties. 25 

 26 

6.  Staff Reports 27 

6.1. New Hire – Program Coordinator 28 

Recreation Director, Craig Fraley, stated that the Recreation Department is recommending 29 

Amy Hull as the new Recreation Program Coordinator. Ms. Hull previously worked for the 30 

department as the PMEC Coordinator and left the position in October of 2022 to seek full-31 

time work. The process for hiring the Program Coordinator has been a long one. The position 32 

was posted in November and received many applicants. Most of the applicants did not show 33 

the necessary skills for the position. The position was re-posted in January of 2023. At that 34 

time, Amy Hull applied within a couple of days. He stated that he believes Ms. Hull will be 35 

great addition in the Program Coordinator position. She has a lot of institutional knowledge of 36 

the department and will require minimal training compared to someone from outside of our 37 

organization. 38 

Page 35 of 38



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2023.01.23 

 PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to accept the 39 

Recreation Director’s nomination and hire Amy Hull as the full-time Program Coordinator 40 

for the Recreation Department. 41 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 42 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 43 

 44 

 6.2 EMT Hiring 45 

 46 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 47 

the hiring of EMT Jessica Lewis to the current roster of EMS providers for Amherst Fire 48 

Rescue and at the hourly rate of $18.40. 49 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 50 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 51 

 52 

 6.3 CRF Withdrawal Request 53 

Fire Chief Conley stated that this is a request to withdraw $706,796.08 from the Amherst Fire 54 

Rescue Vehicle & Equipment Purchase & Repair CRF for the purchase of the 2024 Spartan 55 

Metro Star Pumper Truck. This will reimburse the payment made to Toyne, Inc. from the 56 

general fund. 57 

 58 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to withdraw 59 

$706,796.08 from the Amherst Fire Rescue Vehicle & Equipment Purchase & Repair Capital 60 

Reserve Fund to reimburse the Town for the purchase of the 2024 Spartan Metro Star Pumper 61 

Truck. 62 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 63 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 64 

 65 

7. Approvals 66 

 7.1 Payroll, AP, and Minutes 67 

 68 

Payroll 69 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 70 

approve one (1) FY23 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $246,331.57 dated January 12, 2023, 71 

subject to review and audit. 72 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 73 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 74 

 75 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 76 

approve one (1) FY23 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $296.44 dated January 13 , 2023, 77 

subject to review and audit. 78 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 79 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 80 

 81 

Accounts Payable 82 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 83 

approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $26,239.95 dated 84 

December 31 , 2022, subject to review and audit. (NH DMV) 85 

Page 36 of 38



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2023.01.23 

 PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 86 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 87 

 88 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 89 

approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $28,892.37 dated January 90 

17, 2023 subject to review and audit. (NH DMV) 91 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 92 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 93 

 94 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 95 

approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $294,742.80 dated 96 

January 3, 2023, subject to review and audit. (Vendors) 97 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 98 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 99 

 100 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 101 

approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $116,023.55 dated 102 

January 5, 2023, subject to review and audit. (Vendors) 103 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 104 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 105 

 106 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 107 

approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $70,000.00 dated January 108 

12, 2023, subject to review and audit. (Vendors) 109 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 110 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 111 

 112 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 113 

approve one (1) FY23 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $554,884.07 dated 114 

January 17, 2023, subject to review and audit. (Vendors) 115 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 116 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 117 

 118 

Minutes 119 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 120 

approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of January 9, 2023, as amended. 121 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 122 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 123 

 124 

8.  Action Items 125 

The Board reviewed its action items. 126 

 127 

9.  Old/New Business 128 

Selectman D’Angelo stated that the Joint Facilities Advisory Committee (JFAC) will be 129 

holding an information session at 6pm tomorrow. 130 

 131 

Page 37 of 38



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2023.01.23 

 PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

Selectman Pray stated that she has a draft newsletter which she will send to Board members 132 

for review. She noted that the next scheduled Board meeting is also the night of a school 133 

deliberative session. Chairman Lyon stated that he would review this timing. 134 

 135 

10.  Non-Public Session 136 

 137 

A MOTION was made by Chairman Lyon and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to enter into 138 

Non-Public Session, per RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee, 139 

and also per RSA 91-A:3, II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect 140 

adversely the reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself, unless 141 

such person requests an open meeting. This exemption shall extend to any application for 142 

assistance or tax abatement or waiver of a fee, fine, or other levy, if based on inability to pay 143 

or poverty of the applicant. 144 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 145 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 146 

 147 

10.1 RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee 148 

 149 

10.2. RSA 91-A:3, II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect 150 

adversely the reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body 151 

itself, unless such person requests an open meeting. This exemption shall extend 152 

to any application for assistance or tax abatement or waiver of a fee, fine, or other 153 

levy, if based on inability to pay or poverty of the applicant. 154 

 155 

11. Adjournment  156 

 157 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 158 

adjourn the meeting at 7:55pm. 159 

Roll Call Voting: Selectman Grella – aye; Selectman D’Angelo – aye; Selectman Pray – aye; 160 

Selectman Stoughton – aye; and Chairman Lyon – aye; 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 161 

 162 

NEXT MEETING: Monday, February 6, 2023 163 

   164 

_________________________       __________________ 165 

Selectman Danielle Pray Date 166 

Page 38 of 38


	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Citizens' Forum
	4. Board Appointment, Conservation Committee
	1. Volunteer Application for Conservation Commission-
	Bender, M ACC Application Jan 2023


	5. Scheduled Appointments
	6. Administration
	1. Administrative updates
	Staff Report


	7. Staff Reports
	1. Part-Time Dispatcher Hire
	Staff Report

	2. DPW Ford F550 Bid
	Staff Report
	CMG Bid 07-23
	Award for 07-23
	Equipment Plan

	3. Fire/Rescue - reduction of Comstar Invoice
	Staff Report

	4. Finance Department Staffing
	Staff Report
	FY23 Town Wage Scale
	Finance Assistant 1.25.2018


	8. Approvals
	1. Request for use of Town Green: Amherst Junior Wome
	Staff Report
	Amherst Junior Women's Club Easter Egg Hunt 2023 Permit request - signed

	2. Hawker and Peddler permit application, Leo Short, 
	Staff Report
	Leo Short, Sammich LLC Hawkers and Peddlers application Jan 2023

	3. Assessing
	Staff Report

	4. Payroll, AP and Meeting Minutes
	Staff Report
	2023.01.17 BOS_DRAFT_NonPub_dp
	2023.01.23 BOS_DRAFT_dp


	9. Action Items
	10. Old/New Business
	11. Non-Public Session
	1. RSA 91-A:3, II (c) Matters which, if discussed in 
	2. RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a p

	 Adjournment
	 Next Meeting: February 21, 2023

		2023-01-27T11:59:44-0800
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




